
 

Meeting of the Valley Clean Energy Alliance 
Board of Directors 

December 13, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. 
City of Davis Community Chambers, 23 Russell Blvd., Davis, CA  95616 

 
Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special assistance or a 
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, or who have a disability 
and wish to request an alternative format for the meeting materials, should contact Alisa Lembke, VCEA 
Board Clerk/Administrative Analyst, at least two (2) working days before the meeting at (530) 446-2754 
or Alisa.Lembke@valleycleanenergy.org.   
 
If you have anything that you wish to be distributed to the Board and included in the official record, please 
hand it to a member of VCEA staff who will distribute the information to the Board members and other 
staff.   
 
Please note that the numerical order of items is for convenience of reference.  Items may be taken out of 
order on the request of any Board member with the concurrence of the Board. Staff recommendations 
are advisory to the Board.  The Board may take any action it deems appropriate on any item on the agenda 
even if it varies from the staff recommendation.  
 
Board Members:  Lucas Frerichs (Chair/City of Davis), Tom Stallard (Vice Chair/City of Woodland),  
Angel Barajas (City of Woodland), Duane Chamberlain (Yolo County), Don Saylor (Yolo County), and 
Dan Carson (City of Davis)  
 
5:30 p.m. Call to Order  

1. Welcome and Roll Call  

  

2. Approval of Agenda   

 

3. Public Comment:  This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any VCEA-
related matters that are not otherwise on this meeting agenda. Public comments on matters 
listed on the agenda shall be heard at the time the matter is called. As with all public comment, 
members of the public who wish to address the Board are customarily limited to two minutes 
per speaker, but an extension can be provided at the discretion of the Chair. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

4. Approval of Draft November 1, 2018 Special Meeting (PCIA Workshop) and Draft November 

15, 2018 Special Meeting Minutes  

 

5. Receive Long Range Calendars    
 

 1



 
 

6. Receive Financial Update – October 31, 2018 (unaudited) financial statements  
 

7. Receive December 5, 2018 Regulatory Update provided by Keyes & Fox 
 

8. Receive Customer Enrollment Update as of December 7, 2018  
 

9. Receive Community Advisory Committee’s December 3, 2018 Meeting Summary  
 

10. Request to approve Amendment 6 to amend Task Order No. 4 (Operational Staff Services) of 

the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) Professional Services Agreement to extend 

the Task Order to March 1, 2019. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 

11. Board Consideration of Appointment of City of Woodland Resident to Community 
Advisory Committee 
 

12. Staff Recommendation to Proceed/Complete PCC-2 Renewable Power Procurement for 
2019  
 

13. Provide update to VCE Board Approved modifications to Valley Clean Energy’s rate 
structure, rate discount and postponement of NEM Customer Enrollment that partially 
address the financial impacts associated with the California Public Utilities Commission’s 
October 11, 2018 Power Charge Indifference Adjustment decision.   

 
14. Board Member and Staff Announcements:  Action items and reports from members of the Board, 

including announcements, AB1234 reporting of meetings attended by Board Members at VCEA 
expense, questions to be referred to staff, future agenda items, and reports on meetings and 
information which would be of interest to the Board or the public.   

 
The next VCEA Board meeting: Thursday, January 10, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. at the City of 
Woodland Council Chambers, 300 1st Street, Woodland, CA  95695.       

 
15. Election of Chair and Vice Chair (Effective January 2019)  

 
16. Adjournment of the business portion of the meeting to recognize VCEA’s 2nd Anniversary, 

reception to follow.   
 

Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a regular board meeting 

are available for public inspection.  Those records that are distributed less than 72 hours prior to 

the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all 

members, or a majority of the members of the Board.  VCEA public records are available for 

inspection by contacting Board Clerk Alisa Lembke at (530) 446-2750 or 

Alisa.Lembke@ValleyCleanEnergy.org.  Agendas and Board meeting materials can be inspected 

at VCEA’s offices located at 604 Second Street, Davis, California 95616; those interested in 

inspecting these materials are asked to call (530) 446-2750 to make arrangements.  The 

documents are also available on the Valley Clean Energy website located at: 

https://valleycleanenergy.org/about-us/meetings/    

2



 1 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 
 

Staff Report – Agenda Item 4 

 

TO:   Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors  
 

FROM:  Alisa Lembke, VCEA Board Clerk/Administrative Analyst 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes from November 1, 2018 and November 15, 2018 
Special Board Meetings  

 

DATE:   December 13, 2018 
              
 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
Receive, review and approve the attached draft Minutes from the November 1, 2018 Special Board / 
PCIA Workshop meeting and November 15, 2018 Special Board meeting.   
 
 
 
     

3



 

VCEA Notes November 1, 2018 PCIA Workshop Page 1 of 5 

 

 

  

MEETING MINUTES OF THE VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

PCIA WORKSHOP 

Thursday, November 1, 2018 

 

The Board of Directors of the Valley Clean Energy Alliance duly noticed their Special meeting scheduled 

for Thursday, November 1, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. at the Yolo County Board of Supervisors Chambers, 625 

Court Street, Room 206, Woodland, California.  A quorum of Board members was established and the 

meeting began at 5:34 p.m.     

 

Board Members Present: Lucas Frerichs, Dan Carson, Don Saylor, Duane Chamberlain * 

 

Board Members Absent: Tom Stallard, Angel Barajas 

 

    *=Duane Chamberlain departed at 6:50 p.m.  

 

  

Approval of 

Agenda 

Chairperson Frerichs introduced the Board; informed those present that a quorum 

was established; that no action would be taken tonight as this is a workshop; and, 

that this is an information meeting only.   

 

Director Saylor made a motion to approve the November 1, 2018 Agenda, 

seconded by Director Chamberlain.  Motion passed unanimously with Directors 

Stallard and Barajas absent.             

 

Public Comment Chairperson Frerichs opened the floor for public comment. There being no public 

comment, the floor was closed.   

 

CLOSED 

SESSION 

The Board adjourned their meeting to go into Closed Session at 5:36 p.m.   The 

Board returned to their Agenda at 6:00 p.m.  Chairperson Frerichs stated that 

there was nothing to report out from Closed Session.   

 

WORKSHOP 

Power Charge 

Indifference 

Adjustment (PCIA)  

 

VCE Staff Gary Lawson reviewed slides provided in the handout covering 

the PCIA decision, historical and proposed PCIA for PG&E, revised 

comparison base case, and an Excel spreadsheet (slide 7), showing the 

current PG&E calculated PCIA (less likely) and reduced operating costs.  

 

Mr. Lawson reviewed several case scenarios: 

 

Base Case (slide 8) updated PCIA estimate (more likely), reduced operating 

costs.  Mr. Sears pointed out that it is key to look at the net margin and that, 

ideally, the number should never be lower than 5% of market.   

 

Base Case (slide 9) - PCIA fully adjusted for recent power market pricing 

moves (less likely), reduced operating costs.  

 

4



 

VCEA Notes November 1, 2018 PCIA Workshop Page 2 of 5 

 

 

Mr. Lawson stated that there are policy options available and reviewed 

additional case scenarios:    

 

Base Case (slide 10) – updated PCIA estimate (more likely), reduced 

operating costs and assumes PG&E rates remain flat.  Mr. Lawson stated 

that Staff looked at lower rates from the current 2.5% less VCE rate, such as 

1%, but the lower rates are not in this slide scenario.  

 

Base Case (slides 11 and 12) updated PCIA estimate (more likely), 

elimination of rate discount, reduced operating costs.  VCE Staff Lisa 

Limcaco addressed the revised NEM policy in this model of monthly billing 

with February annual true up. 

 

Base Case (slide 13) – updated PCIA estimate (more likely), elimination of 

rate discount, deferral of NEM enrollment, reduced operating costs.  This 

model assumes that the NEM Customers do not come in at all, but it will be 

a policy decision the Board will need to make and most likely it will only be 

a one-year deferral.  Director Carson asked if they could see what the model 

looks like with only a 6-month deferral.  Mr. Lawson replied that a 6-month 

deferral helps a little, but not enough, and suggested that the Board review 

information after a year to possibly bring NEM Customers back in 2020.   

 

Several policy options to stabilize VCE financials (slide 14) were presented: 

- Reduce/eliminate rate discount / match PG&E rates (0% discount) 

and adopt dividend (similar to MBCE approach) 

- NEM options: 2019 enrollment deferral, revisit for 2020 / eliminate 

NEM generation premium 

- Reduce renewable/clean energy content 

- Trim operating costs 

 

Mr. Lawson reviewed the benefits of eliminating the rate discount and 

deferring NEM enrollment (slide 15).  Director Carson stated that he is 

concerned how postponement of NEM is communicated to the NEM 

customers.    

 

Mr. Sears stated that in anticipation of major policy changes that will most 

likely have to be made, he asked Mr. Jim Parks, VCE Director of Customer 

Care and Marketing, to put together a marketing strategy.   

 

Mr. Parks reviewed with those present the marketing strategy, which 

includes public outreach meetings, messaging, and opportunities for 

customers to express their concerns and ask questions.   Chairperson 

Frerichs stated that the Board and CAC Members need to also support 

messaging of VCE.  Mr. Parks reviewed a marketing schedule addressing 

our website, social media, call center, newspaper, and partnerships with 

other agencies/entities.   

 

5



 

VCEA Notes November 1, 2018 PCIA Workshop Page 3 of 5 

 

 

Mr. Parks announced that the SACOG grant is forthcoming, which lays the 

foundation for further advancement in the communities that are served by 

VCE.  A SACOG phone conference call is scheduled tomorrow get more 

information.  He stated that a joint press release is forthcoming after all 

parties agree and after the final definitive award has been made which is 

scheduled to be heard in mid-December by the SACOG Board.   

 

Chairperson Gerry Braun of the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 

provided a recap of the CAC’s October 29, 2018 meeting discussion on 

PCIA as follows: 

1. Communications with Customers need to remain positive while 

emphasizing VCE’s long term vision, cost competitiveness with 

PG&E, and clear communications of PCIA increase and resilience 

of VCE.   

2. Aim to avoid an increase in opt-outs and encourage community 

support to opt-up.  

3. Consider year-end rebate or other similar approach. 

4. Consider load shifting / energy efficiency messaging. 

5. Encourage VCE to look at other options to deferring NEM 

customer enrollment, while lessoning the financial impact to VCE, 

such as, possibly removing the $0.01 cent premium on net 

generation.  Encourage the Board to consider the long-term 

strategic impact of delaying NEM customer enrollment.  

6. VCE needs to retain the flexibility and capacity to ensure VCE’s 

short and long-term vision.   

 

Chairperson Frerichs thanked the CAC for presenting the recap of their 

PCIA discussion and for the work of the CAC.   

 

Comments:   

 

Director Saylor reiterated that he does not want to deter long term vision 

with short term decisions/policy changes, while focusing on “retaining 

flexibility and capacity to ensure short and long-term vision” recapped in 

the CAC’s discussion.  In addition, he believes that there has to be a 

discount of some amount as VCE customers not only live “renewable” but 

appreciate the discount.  He reminded those present that there are always 

opportunities in an “issue” environment.  He encourages increasing 

communications with large accounts, getting the message out that we are 

“steering the course”, and enlisting the community to be a part of this 

process/journey.     

 

*=Duane Chamberlain departed at 6:50 p.m.  

 

Director Carson commented that there are too many moving parts with 

information coming in daily, and as a result, the Board will most likely 

finalize the best course of action at their December Board meeting.   

6



 

VCEA Notes November 1, 2018 PCIA Workshop Page 4 of 5 

 

 

He is interested in learning more about the reduction to operating costs and 

what the implications are to the budget.  He also supports the marketing 

solutions as suggested by the CAC and the implications to some of the ideas 

expressed in their recap.     

 

Chairperson Frerichs asked for clarification as to why the account amounts 

remain the same in slides 11 and 12 for the 2018, 2019, 2020, and 2021 

years, because of NEM enrollment?  Yes.   

 

Chairperson Frerichs commented that he would also like to see a 1% model 

so there is some form of discount and offering something tangible is 

important.  He likes the Monterey structure, which needs to be explored 

further, but he is not sure how to have that discussion.  He believes it is 

important to bring in the NEM customers, having them in VCE as 

customers is better for VCE in the long term, and expanding VCE areas 

thereby increasing the number of customers.  In regard to the NEM 

customers, it would be good to offer an incentive, although not large, but 

something.  And, not delaying enrollment of the NEM customers.  He 

reminded those present that one of the primary goals of VCE is renewables, 

so not certain if we want to reduce our renewables.    The more VCE can 

show the public that VCE is doing what they proposed to do is important.   

 

Mr. Sears stated that Staff can provide a 1% discount rate model.  He 

reminded those present that anything less than 5% net margin is not good 

business practice nor is it acceptable to the terms of VCE’s agreement with 

River City Bank.  Mr. Sears stated that VCE is already passed due its sixty 

(60) days prior to enrollment notification to enroll NEM customers in 

January 2019.    

 

Chairperson Frerichs stated he understands the keeping above the 5% net 

margin, but what about the net income - what are the legal requirements to 

have a balanced budget for JPAs?  Ms. Harriet Steiner, VCE legal counsel, 

stated that JPAs need to have a balanced budget, so various blocks are 

moved around in order to accomplish this.  Mr. Lawson informed those 

present that once VCE’s reserves are built up, VCE can use their reserves to 

assist with balancing the budget, but that is not where VCE is currently. 

 

Mr. Sears reminded those present that recommendations will be 

forthcoming to be addressed at the Board’s upcoming meetings on 

November 15th and/or at its regularly scheduled meeting in December.     

 

  

Board Member and 

Staff 

Announcements 

Mr. Sears informed those present that the SACOG grant awards were announced, 

of which VCE in conjunction with the Cities of Woodland and Davis and Yolo 

County are identified as a grant recipient.  Director Saylor said this was a 

competitive grant, congratulated those who worked on the application and stated 

7



 

VCEA Notes November 1, 2018 PCIA Workshop Page 5 of 5 

 

 

that this was a great opportunity to do a lot.  Chairperson Frerichs thanked VCE 

staff and the collaboration that occurred.   

 

Announcements 

 

The next VCEA Board meeting has been scheduled for Thursday, November 15, 

2018 at 5:30 p.m. at the Yolo County Board of Supervisors, 625 Court Street, Room 

206, Woodland, CA  95695        

 

Meeting was adjourned at 7:02 p.m.    
 

 

Alisa Lembke 

Board Clerk/Administrative Analyst 

8



 

VCEA Minutes November 15, 2018 Page 1 of 6 

 

 

  

MINUTES OF THE VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

NOVEMBER 15, 2018 

 

The Board of Directors of the Valley Clean Energy Alliance duly noticed their Special meeting scheduled 

for Thursday, November 15, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. at the Yolo County Board of Supervisors Chambers, located 

at 625 Court Street, Room 206, Woodland, CA 95695.  Chairperson Lucas Frerichs established that there 

was a quorum present and began the meeting at 5:30 p.m.     

 

Board Members Present: Lucas Frerichs, Tom Stallard, Dan Carson, Don Saylor, Duane 

Chamberlain (* departed at 6:10 p.m.), Skip Davies 

 

Board Members Absent: Angel Barajas    

  

Approval of 

Agenda 

Director Chamberlain requested that Item 14 – PCIA on the Regular Agenda be 

moved to immediately follow the Public Comment period before the Consent 

Agenda items.  Motion made by Director Chamberlain to approve the amended 

November 15, 2018 Agenda, seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed 

unanimously with Director Barajas absent.     

     

Public Comment Chairperson Frerichs opened the floor for public comment. There being no public 

comment, the floor was closed.  Chairperson Frerichs moved to Item 14 – PCIA.   

 

Modifications to 

VCE’s rate 

structure, rate 

discount, and 

postponement of 

NEM Customer 

Enrollment to 

address CPUC 

PCIA decision  

 

VCE Interim General Manager Mitch Sears introduced the item through a 

PowerPoint presentation and started by providing a brief overview of the 

California Public Utilities Commission’s (CPUC) ruling on the Power Charge 

Indifferencef Adjustment (PCIA).  VCE Staff Gary Lawson reviewed the key 

financial impact factors (slide 9); PCIA History/Comparisons (slides 10 - 12); 

Resource Adequacy (slide 13)load forecast changes by California Energy 

Commission (CEC) and Forward Power Market Costs (slide 14).   

 

Mr. Sears introduced VCE Staff Lisa Limcaco.  Ms. Limcaco reviewed financial 

obligations (slide 15) in summary: SMUD contract requiring a reserve account; 

River City Bank (RCB) credit agreement - Line of Credit; and, RCB credit 

agreement converts to a term loan, a minimum Debt Service Cover Ratio (DSCR) 

must be met.   

 

Mr. Sears reviewed Staff recommendations of policy modifications (slide 16): 

adopt a minimum net margin target of 5%; postpone enrollment of NEM 

customers until at least January 2020 with a reassessment in mid 2019; for 2019, 

VCE match PG&E generation rates less PCIA fee; and, study adoption of new 

rate structure featuring an annual dividend rate structure staring in fiscal year end 

2020. Please note that the operating cost savings for 2019 have been incorporated 

into the Board approved budget.   

 

9



 

VCEA Minutes November 15, 2018 Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Ms. Limcaco reviewed operating costs savings (slide 17); the impacts of policy 

modifications on VCE financials (slide 18); and, results of policy modifications 

from Base Case (slide 19).  Directors raised questions about 1) possible loan 

revisions, 2) meeting VCE’s long term goals, and 3) broader conversation with 

RCB.  Ms.Limcaco stated that she would like to wait until PG&E rates come out 

before talking about revisions to the loan with RCB. Mr. Sears informed those 

present that RCB is very experienced in this arena and they are comfortable with 

our plan and projections.  He stated that more detailed conversations are 

anticipated to occur.   

 

Mr. Lawson reviewed briefly PCIA rates and power costs.  Other items that were 

discussed were:  1) details of scenarios presented, 2) short- and long-term 

electricity generation costs, 3) potential of PCIA charge going down in the future, 

4) the need for future analysis if customer base goes up or down, 5) costs 

associated with bringing on NEM customers, and 6) load forecasting.   

 

Mr. Lawson commented that it is very difficult to forecast whether PCIA charges 

will go down.  Mr. Sears reiterated that fomal talks with RCB are in the works; 

and,VCE is being proactive and has not used all of the line of credit.  A question 

was asked when would the 3 jurisdictions be paid back their loan amounts to 

VCE.  Ms. Limcaco reminded those present that RCB must be paid back first 

before the jurisdictions and that the financial forecast shows that they would be 

paid back in five (5) years instead of three (3) years.   Mr. Sears stated that there 

will be opportunities to address additional issues, such as PG&E load costs being 

spread across to all, even to those who recently entered into the process.   

 

Director Chamberlain departed at 6:10 p.m.  

 

Mr. Sears reviewed the impact of PCIA change to VCE revenues in 2018 and 

2019 (slide 20); the benefits of deferring NEM enrollment and matching PG&E 

electric generation rates (slide 21); timing of CPUC decision on PG&E electric 

rates, including PCIA(slide 22); and, reviewed draft outreach strategy (slides 23 

and 24).  

 

Chairperson Frerichs opened the floor for public comment. 

 

Ms. Christine Shewmaker introduced herself speaking as an individual resident, 

not as a CAC Member.  Ms. Shewmaker expressed her frustration that bringing 

on NEM customers has again been postponed a second time.  She commented that 

Senate Bill 2037 – Direct Access, will have an impact during the next few years.  

In addition, she commented that VCE’s customer outreach will be difficult and 

will most likely not be received well.   

 

There being no other public comments, Chairperson Frerichs closed the public 

comment period and opened the floor to the Board.   

 

10



 

VCEA Minutes November 15, 2018 Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Director Carson made comments that VCE needs to address the issues as delaying 

does not help; he supports Staff’s recommendations because of the financial 

projections are so drastic; he would like to restore some type of discount; long-

term planning should be at the top of VCE’s priority list; and, he would like to 

review in six (6) months what other CCAs are doing as he thinks it will be helpful 

for the long-term planning.   

 

Director Saylor commented that we should look at bringing back in those people 

that opted out, educating the residents, and making it well known to the 

Legislature that VCE is new and will be effected by others’ actions.  He also 

commented that during our Customer outreach efforts we need to keep in mind 

that reactions will be mixed and some will be confused.    

 

Chairperson Frerichs made a motion to approve Staff’s recommendations, 

seconded by Director Stallard.  After a motion was made and seconded a 

discussion followed.   

 

Director Stallard commented that it is very disconcerning that the CPUC came to 

a decision that detrimentally effects CCAs, with ten (10) newly formed CCAs in 

2018 - more than half are new.  He thanked the CAC for their assistance.  He 

commented that the policy recommendations are good ones; likes the dividend at 

the end of the year idea; wants to give back to the customers; and, would like to 

do programs in the future.  He also stressed the important of communicating 

effectively with others on what is goining on.     

 

Director Davies commented that he is struggling with postponing NEM customer 

enrollment.  Mr. Sears and Ms. Limcaco reviewed postponing NEM customer 

enrollment and the impacts to the financials.       

 

Director Carson commented that he would like to persue a 1% dividend rebate 

and for Staff to look at the numbers in six (6) months to see if this is possible.     

 

Chairperson Frerichs commented that there are additional changes forthcoming, 

such as in the energy market due to fires and PG&E stock prices going down.  He 

commented that VCE are well served by expertise of SMUD and of the CAC 

Members.  He also commented that VCE will need to continue to monitor and 

reassess monthly; marketing outreach is huge with all customers; legislative work 

has to occur with CalCCA and as an individual CCA; and, we need to look at 

local incentive programs too. The SACOG grant application was a strong because 

all three (3) agencies came together.   

 

Director Stallard commented that of the SACOG grant award, VCE’s application  

received ¼ of the total amount which is a huge recognition to our Agency.  

Director Saylor commented that $40 million was requested in applications and 

Yolo County received a large portion of the grant award.     

 

 

11



 

VCEA Minutes November 15, 2018 Page 4 of 6 

 

 

 

To recap, Chairperson Frerichs made a motion to approve Staff’s 

recommendations as follows:   

1. Adopt a minimum VCE net margin (after bank loan principal payments) 

target of 5%; 

2. Postpone enrollment of Net Energy Metering customers until at least 

January 2020 with a reassessment of enrollment date in mid-2019; 

3. For 2019, adopt electric generation rates identical to PG&E, after 

factoring the Power Charge Indifference Adjustment (PCIA) imposed by 

regulatory agencies; 

4. Study adoption of a new rate structure featuring an annual dividend rebate 

structure to be implemented starting in July 2019; 

 

Motion was seconded by Director Stallard. Motion passed unanimously by the 

following vote:   

 

   AYES:  Frerichs, Stallard, Carson, Saylor, Davies 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT:  Barajas, Chamberlain 

ABSTAIN:  None  

 

 

Approval of 

Consent Agenda 

Motion made by Director Stallard to approve the Consent Agenda, Items 4-12, 

seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed unanimously with Directors Barajas 

and Chamberlain absent.  Chairperson Frerichs introduced Susan Bierzychudek of 

Green Ideals, the new VCE customner outreach and marketing services 

consultant.  Ms. Bierzychudek introduced herself, thanked the Board for the 

opportunity to assist Valley Clean Energy, and asked if the Board had any 

questions.  There being no questions, the Board moved onto Item 13 – SACOG 

grant.   

 

Approval of 

Minutes from 

October 18, 2018 

Special Board 

Meeting 

 

Director Stallard made a motion to approve the October 18, 2018 Special meeting 

minutes, seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed unanimously with 

Directors Barajas and Chamberlain absent.       

 

Long Range 

Calendars  

 

Director Stallard made a motion to receive the long-range calendars, which 

include the remaining months in 2018 and the 2019 calendar year, seconded by 

Director Carson.  Motion passed unanimously with Directors Barajas and 

Chamberlain absent.     

 

Receive Financial 

Update – 

September 30, 

Director Stallard made a motion to receive Financial Update – September 30, 

2018 (unaudited) financial statements with revised comparative information from 

prior periods and Actual vs. Budget for the quarter ending September 30, 2018, 

12



 

VCEA Minutes November 15, 2018 Page 5 of 6 

 

 

2018 (unaudited) 

financial statements 

seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed unanimously with Directors Barajas 

and Chamberlain absent.    

Regulatory Update 

 

Director Stallard made a motion to receive the regulatory monitoring report dated 

November 7, 2018 from Keyes & Fox, seconded by Director carson.  Motion 

passed unanimously with Directors Barajas and Chamberlain absent.   

 

Customer 

Enrollment Update 

 

Director Stallard made a motion to receive the Customer Enrollment Update dated 

November 7, 2018, seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed unanimously 

with Directors Barajas and Chamberlain absent.   

 

Community 

Advisory 

Committee 

Meeting Update, 

Summary of 

November 1, 2018 

Board PCIA 

Workshop, and 

First Year Progress 

Report 

 

Director Stallard made a motion to receive the Community Advisory Committee’s 

(CAC) October 29, 2018 meeting summary; comments on the November 1, 2018 

Special Board meeting / Power Charge Indifference Adjustment workshop; and, 

First Year Progress Report, seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed 

unanimously with Directors Barajas and Chamberlain absent.   

Approve Revised 

Community 

Advisory 

Committee Charge 

/ Resolution 2018-

029 

Director Stallard made a motion to approve a resolution titled “a Resolution of the 

Valley Clean Energy Alliance approving the Updated Community Advisory 

Committee Charge”, seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed unanimously 

with Directors Barajas and Chamberlain absent.   

 

Approve 

Solicitation and 

Appointment 

process to the 

Community 

Advisory 

Committee and 

confirm 

appointments of 

current CAC 

Members / 

Resolution 2018-

030 

 

Director Stallard made a motion to approve a resolution titled “a Resolution 

of the Valley Clean Energy Alliance approving the solicitation, selection 

and appointment to the Community Advisory Committee and appoint the 

current members to terms of service”, seconded by Director Carson.  

Motion passed unanimously with Directors Barajas and Chamberlain 
absent.   

Approval of 

Marketing and 

Outreach Vendor 

and Authorization / 

Director Stallard made a motion to approve a resolution titled “a Resolution of the 

Valley Clean Energy Alliance approving the selection of Green Ideals as the 

communications and outreach vendor for VCEA program and operations and 

authorizing the VCEA Interim General Manger to negotiate a services contract 

with Green Ideals and to approve and execute the agreement under the terms set 

13



 

VCEA Minutes November 15, 2018 Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Resolution 2018-

031 

forth herein”, seconded by Director Carson.  Motion passed unanimously with 

Directors Barajas and Chamberlain absent.   

 
Presentation on 

Collective Grant 

Application to 

SACOG for 

Regional, 

Community 

Design, and Green 

Region funding 

programs 

(Informational) 

VCE Staff Jim Parks introduced this item. He reviewed the background of the 

SACOG grant (slide 2) and thanked everyone who assisted in getting this 

application together with Kerry Loux (City of Davis) really getting this 

application together.  He informed those present that there were numerous 

applications asking a total of $39.155 million and $11.670 million was 

recommended for awardship (slide 3).   The total amount to be awarded to VCE 

and its partner Agencies is $2.9 with $380,000 (11.47%) in cost share.  Current 

project activities and grant schedule (slides 5 and 6) were reviewed.  Mr. Parks 

commented that the projects lay the groundwork in Yolo County for future 

expansion.  Chairperson Frerichs asked that Staff have the CAC provide input for 

their ideas.  Director Saylor commented that there are other exciting projects 

coming from the SACOG grant and that Staff need to be involved in the next few 

months prior to the award to answer questions.  Mr. Sears reiterated that Staff will 

be asking for CAC’s input when looking at the value that could be brought to 

VCE.   

  

Board Member and 

Staff 

Announcements 

Mr. Sears informed those present that Executive Director, Beth Vaughn, of 

CalCCA visited VCE’s administrative offices and provided a new handout 

recognizing the energy suppliers, such as CCAs, within the State.  Collectively 

CCAs are strong and there is a future for CCAs in California.  

 

Director Saylor informed those present that he attended a ribbon cutting event at 

Muir Commons Community in West Davis, a co-housing, multi-family complex, 

which recently installed charging stations in their parking lot, one for each unit. 

    

Announcements 

 

The next VCEA Board meeting has been scheduled for Thursday, December 13, 

2018 at 5:30 p.m. at the City of Davis Community Chambers, 23 Russell Blvd., 

Davis, CA  95616.          

 

Meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m.   

 

 

Alisa Lembke 

Board Clerk/Administrative Analyst 

14



VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 
Staff Report – Agenda Item 5 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TO:   VCEA Board 
 
FROM:  Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager 
    
SUBJECT: Long Range Calendars 
 
DATE:  December 13, 2018 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
Please find attached the long-range calendars for the remaining 2018 year and 2019. 
 

15



10/23/18 

 

 
 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY  
2018 Meeting Dates and Topics – Board and Community Advisory Committee  

 

MEETING DATE  TOPICS 
 

ACTION 

May 10, 2018 Board 
WOODLAND 

• Recontracting Master Agreement  
 

• Approve 
 

June 4, 2018 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

• Integrated Resource Plan • Informational 

June 1, 2018 -- LAUNCH 

June 6, 2018 Board 
DAVIS 

• Integrated Resource Plan • Discussion 

July 2, 2018 Advisory 
Committee 
WOODLAND 

• Integrated Resource Plan • Recommend 

July 12, 2018 Board 
WOODLAND 

• Integrated Resource Plan 

• NEM Enrollment – Postponement  

• Approve 

• Approve 

July 30, 2018 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

• NEM Policy Amendment Update 

• Long Term Renewables Procurement Policy 

• Informational 

• Recommend  

August 9, 2018 Board 
DAVIS 

 

• NEM Policy Amendment Update 

• Long Term Renewables Procurement Policy 

• Informational 

• Approve  

August 29, 2018 
(Wednesday) 

Advisory 
Committee 
WOODLAND 

• NEM Policy Amendment  • Recommend 

Sept 13, 2018 Board 
WOODLAND 

• NEM Policy Amendment • Approve 

    

16



 

 

October 1, 2018 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

• New Member Solicitation Process • Discussion 

October 11, 2018 
October 18, 2018  

Board 
DAVIS 

• Financial Audit  

• New Member Solicitation  

• PCIA Update 

• Quarterly Procurement  

•  

October 29, 2018 Advisory 
Committee 
WOODLAND 

• PCIA and SB237 

• Quarterly Procurement Update 

• First Year Progress Report 

• CAC Updated Charge  

• Terms of Service 

•  

November 1, 2018 
Special/Workshop 

Board 
WOODLAND 

• PCIA Workshop •  

November 8, 2018 
November 15, 2018 
(Special) 

Board 
WOODLAND 

• Strategy of Bringing on New Members 

• PCIA  

•  

December 3, 2018 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

• Election of Positions •  

December 13, 2018 Board 
DAVIS 

• Election of Positions •  

 

17



11/30/18 

 
 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY  
2019 Meeting Dates and Topics – Board and Community Advisory Committee  

 

MEETING DATE  TOPICS 
 

ACTION 

December 31, 2018 
HOLIDAY 
 

Advisory 
Committee 

WOODLAND 

• This meeting has been cancelled.   •  

January 10, 2019 Board 
WOODLAND 

•  •  

February 4, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

•  •  

February 14, 2019 Board 
DAVIS 

•  •  

March 4, 2019 Advisory 
Committee  
WOODLAND 

•   •  

March 14, 2019 Board 
WOODLAND 

•  •   

April 1, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

•  •   

April 11, 2019  Board 
DAVIS 

•  •  

April 29, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 
WOODLAND 

•  •  

May 9, 2019 Board 
WOODLAND 

•  •  

June 3, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

•  •  

18



 

 

June 13, 2019 Board 
DAVIS 

•  •  

July 1, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 
WOODLAND 

•  •  

July 11, 2019 Board 
WOODLAND 

•  •  

July 29, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

•  •  

August 8, 2019 Board 
DAVIS 

•  •  

September 2, 2019 
HOLIDAY 

Advisory 
Committee 
WOODLAND 

• Need to reschedule •  

September 12, 2019 Board 
WOODLAND 

•  •  

September 30, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

•  •  

October 10, 2019 Board 
DAVIS 

•  •  

November 4, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 
WOODLAND 

• Need to find different location to meet •  

November 14, 2019 Board 
WOODLAND 

•  •  

December 2, 2019 Advisory 
Committee 

DAVIS 

•  •  

December 12, 2019 Board 
DAVIS 

•  •  

 

19



 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE  
  

Staff Report – Agenda Item 6 

______________________________________________________________________________  

  

TO:     

  

Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors  

FROM:   Lisa Limcaco, Finance and Operations Director, VCEA 

    Chad Rinde, Asst. Chief Financial Officer, Yolo County 

Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager, VCEA  

  

SUBJECT:  

  

Financial Update – October 31, 2018 (unaudited) financial statements (with 

comparative year to date information) and Actual vs. Budget year to date 

ending October 31, 2018 

  

 DATE:   December 13, 2018 

  
  

RECOMMENDATION:   

Accept the Financial Statements (unaudited) for the period of October 1, 2018 to October 31, 2018 

(with comparative year to date information) and Actual vs. Budget year to date ending October 31, 

2018. 

 

BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION:   

The attached financial statements are prepared in a form to satisfy the debt covenants with River City 

Bank pursuant to the Line of Credit and are required to be prepared monthly.   

 

The Financial Statements include the following reports: 

• Statement of Net Position  

• Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position  

• Statement of Cash Flows  

 

In addition, staff is reporting the Actual vs. Budget variances year to date ending October 31, 2018. 

 

Financial Statements for the period October 1, 2018 – October 31, 2018 

In the Statement of Net Position, VCEA as of October 31, 2018 has a total of $4,693,112 in its checking, 

money market and lockbox accounts, $1,100,000 restricted cash for the Debt Service Reserve account 

and $265,229 restricted cash for the Power Purchases Reserve account.  VCEA has incurred obligations 

from Member agencies and SMUD and owes as of October 31, 2018 $642,509 and $1,718,992 

respectively for a grand total of $2,361,501.  VCEA will begin paying SMUD for the monthly operating 

expenditures (starting with October 2018 expenditures) and repayment of the deferred amount of 

20



 

$1,512,360 over a 24-month period.   The outstanding line of credit balance with River City Bank at 

October 31, 2018 totaled $2,976,610.  At October 31, 2018, VCE’s net position is $2,286,483. 

 

In the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position, VCEA recorded $4,742,626 of 

revenue (net of allowance for doubtful accounts) of which $4,870,659 was billed in October and 

($137,134) represent estimated unbilled revenue (net September and October).  The cost of the 

electricity for the October revenue totaled $3,074,183.  For October, VCEA’s gross margin is 

approximately 35.18% and operating income totaled $1,363,656. 

 

In the Statement of Cash Flows, VCEA cash flows from operations was $2,256,068 due to the cash 

receipts of revenues from the summer months and the lower payment of September purchased 

electricity.  The September purchased electricity (paid in October) was paid with cash from operations.  

VCE used the cash from operations to make a $1,000,000 principal payment on the line of credit in early 

November.  

 

Actual vs. Budget Variances for the year to date ending October 31, 2018 

Below are the financial statement line items with variances >$25,000 and 5%: 

 

Electric revenues - ($1,191,953) and (5%)-  actual electric revenues are down from budget due to the 

mild summer weather which led to lower retail customer usage than forecasted load and the deferral of 

NEM customers until 2019.  

 

Salaries & Wages/Benefits – ($139,090) and (56%) – the decrease is due to the budgeted Assistant 

general manager (AGM) position has not been filled.  Beginning September 2018, SMUD’s Task Order 4 

was amended to have SMUD provide proxy AGM services which is included in Contract Labor.  

 

CalCCA dues - $33,373 and 100% - the increase is due to CalCCA billing on a quarterly basis, but our 

budget has it as a one-time annual expense in January 2019. 

 

Legislative/Regulatory – ($33,775) and (42%) – the decrease is due to no legislative expenditures 

incurred year-to-date. 

 

Audit fees – ($42,000) and (70%) – the decrease is due to the audit fees for the 2017/18 fiscal year were 

$18,000 due to only one month of operations compared to the budget of $60,000. 

 

Marketing Collateral – ($43,014) and (100%) – the decrease is due to the selection of a new marketing 

firm made in November and will begin in December 2018. 

 

PG&E Data Fees – ($44,051) and (34%) – due to timing of the billing from PG&E and the deferral of the 

NEM customers that were included in the budget.  

 

21



 

Contingency – ($163,463) and (100%) – due to the inclusion of 10% of operating expenses for 

contingency in the VCE budget. 

 

Interest on RCB loan – ($104,306) and (37%) – due to lower outstanding Line of credit balance than 

originally budgeted.  

 

Attachments: 

1) Financial Statements (Unaudited) October 1, 2018 to October 31, 2018 (with comparative year to 

date information.) 

2) Actual vs. Budget for year to date ending October 31, 2018 

22



 

 

 

 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(UNAUDITED) 

FOR THE PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1, 2018 TO OCTOBER 31, 2018 

(WITH COMPARATIVE YEAR TO DATE INFORMATION) 

PREPARED ON NOVEMBER 29, 2018 

 

 

 

23



 

2 

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash with fiscal agent 4,693,112$                     

Accounts receivable, net of allowance 4,699,169                       

Accrued revenue 2,387,297                       

Prepaid expenses 20,828                           

Inventory - Renewable Energy Credits 730,028                         

Other current assets and deposits 2,540                             

Total current assets 12,532,974                     

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash 1,365,229                       

Other noncurrent assets and deposits 600,000                         

Total noncurrent assets 1,965,229                       
TOTAL ASSETS 14,498,203$                   

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 57,964$                         

Accrued payroll 2,432                             

Interest payable 92,672                           

Due to member agencies 642,509                         

Accrued cost of electricity 5,133,182                       

Other accrued liabilities 1,718,992                       

User taxes and energy surcharges 87,360                           

Total current liabilities 7,735,111                       

Noncurrent liabilities

Line of credit 2,976,610                       

Loans from member agencies 1,500,000                       

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,476,610                       

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,211,721$                   

NET POSITION

Net position:

Restricted

Local Programs Reserve 37,103$                         

Unrestricted 2,249,380                       
TOTAL NET POSITION 2,286,483$                     

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

(UNAUDITED)

AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2018

 

 

24



 

3 

FOR THE 

PERIOD 

ENDING 

OCTOBER 31, 

2018

YEAR TO 

DATE

OPERATING REVENUE

Electricity sales, net 4,742,626$          22,693,393$        

Other revenue -                    -                    

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 4,742,626           22,693,393          

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of electricity 3,074,183           17,625,634          

Contract services 194,126              925,667              

Staff compensation 79,793                222,277              

General, administration, and other 30,868                132,320              

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,378,970           18,905,898          

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,363,656           3,787,496           

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income 970                    970                    

Interest and related expenses (11,443)              (78,129)              

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 

(EXPENSES) (10,473)              (77,159)              

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,353,183           3,710,336           

Net position at beginning of period 933,300              (1,423,853)          
Net position at end of period 2,286,483$          2,286,483$          

(WITH COMPARATIVE YEAR TO DATE INFORMATION)

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

(UNAUDITED)

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1 TO OCTOBER 31, 2018

 

 

25



 

4 

FOR THE 

PERIOD 

ENDING 

OCTOBER 31, 

2018

YEAR TO 

DATE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from electricity sales 5,797,861$       18,514,446$     

Payments for security deposits with energy suppliers -                  -                  

Payments to purchase electricity (3,486,211)        (15,459,832)      

Payments for contract services, general, and adminstration 23,762             (168,759)          

Payments for member agency services -                  -                  

Payments for staff compensation (79,344)            (221,469)          

Other cash payments -                  -                  

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,256,068         2,664,386         

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loans from member agencies -                  -                  

Draw of line of credit -                  4,376,610         

Transfer to restricted cash (63,786)            (265,229)          

Principal payments of Line of Credit to bank -                  (3,000,000)        

Interest and related expenses (22,818)            (47,013)            
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing 

activities (86,604)            1,064,368         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income 970                 970                 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 970                 970                 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,170,434         3,729,724         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2,522,678         963,388           

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 4,693,112$       4,693,112$       

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1 TO OCTOBER 31, 2018

(WITH COMPARATIVE YEAR TO DATE INFORMATION)

(UNAUDITED)

 

 

26



 

 

5 

FOR THE 

PERIOD 

ENDING 

OCTOBER 31, 

2018

YEAR TO 

DATE

Operating Income (Loss) 1,363,656$       3,787,495$       

(Increase) decrease in net accounts receivable 902,123           (4,693,498)        

(Increase) decrease in accrued revenue 137,912           437,193           

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (14,873)            (20,828)            

(Increase) decrease in inventory - renewable energy credits 228,446           (293,441)          

(Increase) decrease in other assets and deposits -                  -                  

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 15,420             (79,511)            

Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 449                 808                 

Increase (decrease) in due to member agencies 41,578             107,870           

Increase (decrease) in accrued cost of electricity (640,475)          2,459,243         

Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 206,632           881,698           

Increase (decrease) in user taxes and energy surcharges 15,200             77,358             

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,256,068$       2,664,386$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided 

(used) by operating activities:

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1 TO OCTOBER 31, 2018

(WITH COMPARATIVE YEAR TO DATE INFORMATION)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(UNAUDITED)

 

 

27



VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY 
ACTUAL VS. BUDGET FYE 6-30-2019
FOR THE YTD ENDING October 31, 2018

10/31/2018 10/31/2018
YTD YTD YTD %

Description FY2019 Actuals FY2019 Budget Variance over/-under
Electric Revenue 22,693,393$    23,885,346$    (1,191,953)$     -5%
Interest Revenues 970                  20,623             (19,653)            -95%

Purchased Power 17,625,634      18,400,455      (774,821)          -4%
Labor & Benefits 322,046           463,288           (141,242)          -30%

Salaries & Wages/Benefits 109,198           248,288           (139,090)          -56%
Contract Labor 212,847           215,000           (2,153)              -1%

Office Supplies & Other Expenses 38,077             19,550             18,527             95%
Technology Costs 2,410               5,000               (2,590)              -52%
Office Supplies 557                  400                  157                  39%
Travel 1,737               10,150             (8,413)              -83%
CalCCA Dues 33,373             -                   33,373             100%
Memberships -                   4,000               (4,000)              -100%

Contractual Services 826,105           967,136           (141,031)          -15%
LEAN Energy 4,336               12,000             (7,665)              -64%
Don Dame 1,983               3,000               (1,017)              -34%
SMUD - Credit Support 228,366           248,494           (20,128)            -8%
SMUD - Wholesale Energy Services 204,720           188,000           16,720             9%
SMUD - Call Center 235,765           258,084           (22,319)            -9%
CirclePoint 51,595             72,801             (21,206)            -29%
Legal 22,397             14,210             8,187               58%
Legislative/Regulatory 46,225             80,000             (33,775)            -42%
Accounting Services 5,064               25,000             (19,936)            -80%
Human Resources & Payroll 7,644               4,026               3,618               90%
Audit Fees 18,000             60,000             (42,000)            -70%
Banking Fees 10                    1,520               (1,510)              -99%

Rents & Leases 5,597               5,600               (3)                     0%
Hunt Boyer Mansion 5,597               5,600               (3)                     0%
Future Office Space -                   -                   -                   0%

Other A&G 85,141             177,056           (91,915)            -52%
Marketing Collateral -                   43,014             (43,014)            -100%
PG&E Data Fees 84,991             129,042           (44,051)            -34%
Community Engagement Activities & Sponsorships 150                  4,000               (3,850)              -96%
Green-e Certification -                   1,000               (1,000)              -100%

Miscellaneous Operating Expenses 3,301               2,000               1,301               65%
Contingency -                   163,463           (163,463)          -100%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 18,905,900$    20,198,548$    (1,292,647)$     -6%

Interest Expense - Munis 18,465             15,802             2,663               17%
Interest on RCB loan 51,921             156,226           (104,306)          -67%
Interest Expense - SMUD 7,742               5,800               1,942               33%

NET INCOME 3,710,335$      3,529,593$      180,742$         5%

28



 1 

 
VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 

 
Staff Report – Agenda Item 7 

 
To:   Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors  
 
From:   Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager 
    
Subject: Regulatory Monitoring Report  
 
Date:   December 13, 2018 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive regulatory monitoring report.  
 
Regulatory Priorities 
 
The Keyes and Fox Board report includes several priority issues including:   
 

• Proposed Decision (PD) on Track 2 Resource Adequacy (RA) Issues. The PD designates 
distribution utilities as the central procurement entity for Local RA. Under the PD, a 
competitive solicitation process would be conducted by the central buyers for three-
year local RA procurement, with bids selected based on a least-cost, best-fit 
methodology and cost recovery of procurement and administrative costs through the 
Cost Allocation Mechanism. 

• Applications for Rehearing of the PCIA Decision and Launch of Phase Two of the 
Proceeding. A number of parties including Peninsula Clean Energy, Marin Clean Energy 
and Sonoma Clean Power (collectively) and CalCCA, Clean Power SF, and Solana Energy 
Authority (collectively) submitted Applications for Rehearing of the CPUC's October 
2018 PCIA Decision. In addition, the judge issued a Ruling scheduling a prehearing 
conference to initiate the working group process as part of the second phase in this 
proceeding. 

• PD on Tree Mortality Non-Bypassable Charge. The CPUC issued a PD that would 
establish a methodology for calculating a non-bypassable charge that will collect 
revenue through the Public Purpose Program Charge to pay for certain biomass energy 
procurement by utilities including PG&E. 

• PG&E's 2019 Rate Design Window Application. PG&E filed a rate design window (RDW) 
Application seeking approval of several proposed modifications to its rates for 
agricultural customers. 

 

Attachment:  Keyes & Fox December 5, 2018 Regulatory Memorandum  

29



 

  

1 

 

 

Valley Clean Energy Alliance 
Regulatory Monitoring Report  

 

 
To:   Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors  
 
From:   Tim Lindl, Partner, Keyes & Fox LLP 
  Sheridan Pauker, Partner, Keyes & Fox, LLP 
  Ben Inskeep, Energy Analyst, EQ Research, LLC 
 
Subject: Regulatory Update  
 
Date:   December 5, 2018 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

Keyes & Fox LLP and EQ Research, LLC, are pleased to provide VCE’s Board of Directors with this 
monthly informational memo describing key California regulatory and compliance-related updates from 
the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), California Energy Commission (CEC), and California 
Air Resources Board (CARB).  

This month’s report includes regulatory updates on the following priority issues:  

• PCIA Rulemaking  

• PG&E’s 2019 Energy Resource and Recovery Account (ERRA) Forecast 

• Resource Adequacy (RA)  

• CCA Reentry Fees & Financial Security Requirements 

• Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) Rulemaking 

• Integrated Resource Plans 

• Tree Mortality Nonbypassable Charge (NBC) 

• PG&E Rate Design Window (RDW) 

• Other Regulatory Developments 
 

PCIA Rulemaking 

On November 19, 2018 CalCCA, Clean Power SF, and Solana Energy Authority (collectively); Shell 
Energy; Protect our Communities Foundation; Direct Access Consumer Coalition and California Large 
Energy Consumers Association (collectively); and Peninsula Clean Energy, Marin Clean Energy and 
Sonoma Clean Power (collectively) submitted separate Applications for Rehearing of D.18-10-019 (i.e., 
the PCIA Track 2 Decision adopting Commissioner Peterman’s Alternate Proposed Decision). The 
utilities’ and other parties’ responses to the Applications for Rehearing were filed on December 4, 2018.  
On November 29, 2018, the judge issued a Ruling scheduling a prehearing conference (PHC) to initiate 
the working group process as part of the second phase in this proceeding.  

• Background: The first phase of this proceeding had two tracks. Track 1 addressed the PCIA 
exemption currently in place for CCA customers participating in the California Alternate Rates for 
Energy (CARE) and Medical Baseline (MB) programs. Track 2 addressed alternatives to the 
current PCIA methodology.  

30



 

  

2 

 

Currently, the CPUC is considering Applications for Rehearing of its Track 2 Decision and has 
opened a second phase of this proceeding to address additional PCIA issues. 

• Details: The ALJ Ruling initiates the second phase of this proceeding beginning with a PHC 
scheduled for December 19. Working groups will be established to address the following issues: 
(1) benchmark true-up related to resource adequacy and the RPS, (2) prepayment, (3) portfolio 
optimization and cost reduction, and (4) allocation and auction. The PHC will help determine the 
final number of working groups to be used, the governance of these working groups, schedules 
and timelines, and other procedural matters. 

Separately, a number of parties have filed Applications for Rehearing of the CPUC’s Track 2 
Decision on the PCIA.  

Earlier in November, the judge denied a request to pause the implementation of a Track 1 
Decision affecting SCE and SDG&E PCIA exemption issues, which do not directly impact PG&E 
or VCE customers. 

• Analysis: The second phase of this proceeding could further affect the PCIA paid by VCE’s 
customers in future (post-2019) years, as well as other important PCIA issues that could impact 
CCAs such as prepayment.  

The PCIA Track 2 Decision, D.18-10-019, will result in a higher PCIA for VCE’s customers. The 
revised PCIA methodology will be used to calculate the PCIA that was intended to take effect 
on January 1, 2019 but now will likely be delayed until March 1, 2019 (see the ERRA proceeding 
below). In addition, D.18-10-019 creates new reporting requirements for LSEs, including CCAs, 
requiring them to submit specific resource contract information on January 31 each year, 
beginning in 2019.  

• Next Steps: The CPUC will grant or deny rehearing by December 10, 2018. The PHC for the 
second phase of this proceeding is scheduled for December 19, 2018, with PHC statements due 
December 12. A new reporting requirement established in the Decision requires VCE to file 
specific contract information with the Energy Division by January 31, 2019. 

• Additional Information:  ALJ Ruling scheduling prehearing conference (November 29, 2018); 
Applications for Rehearing of D.18-10-019: PCE, SCP, and MCE, Shell Energy North America, 
CalCCA, California Large Energy Consumers Association, Protect Our Communities Foundation 
and Utility Consumers’ Action Network (November 19, 2018); E-Mail Ruling denying joint motion 
to stay D.18-07-009 (November 8, 2018); D.18-10-019 Track 2 Decisions adopting the Alternate 
Proposed Decision (October 19, 2018); D.18-09-013 Track 1 Decision approving PG&E 
Settlement Agreement (September 20, 2018); D.18-07-009 resolving SCE & SDG&E PCIA 
exemption issues (July 23, 2018); PG&E Settlement Agreement pending on MB customer PCIA 
exemption  (March 28, 2018); Track 2 Scheduling Memo (May 2, 2018); Docket No. R.17-06-026.  

 

PG&E’s 2019 Energy Resource and Recovery Account Forecast 

On November 7, 2018, PG&E filed its November Update, which includes PG&E’s updated PCIA rates for 
2019 that will apply to VCE customers. On November 19, 2018, parties filed comments on PG&E’s 
November Update.  The ERRA proceeding implemented the D.18-10-019 and other changes to the PCIA.  
The Commission will not be issuing a decision in the ERRA on December 13, 2018 (its last Business 
Meeting of the year), meaning the new PCIA rates are unlikely to go into effect until at least March 1, 
2019. 

• Background: Utility ERRA proceedings establish the amount of the PCIA and other 
nonbypassable charges for 2019. More specifically, they determine fuel and purchased power 
costs associated with serving bundled customers that utilities may recover in rates.  

• Details: In its November Update, PG&E is requesting a 2019 total revenue requirement of $2.929 
billion, comprised of $1.554 billion related to its ERRA, plus three nonbypassable charges: the 
ongoing Competition Transition Charge (CTC), $80.3 million; the PCIA, $1.164 billion; and the 

31

http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M245/K858/245858119.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M243/K008/243008348.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K155/241155646.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K167/241167025.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M243/K008/243008350.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K155/241155647.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K155/241155647.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K165/241165622.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M232/K687/232687030.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M229/K059/229059833.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M217/K918/217918601.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M212/K863/212863194.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M211/K795/211795024.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:R1706026


 

  

3 

 

Cost Allocation Mechanism, $131.1 million. PG&E also requested approval of its 2019 sales 
forecast, as well as its 2019 GHG-related forecasts, which includes a net GHG revenue return of 
$324.5 million. PG&E’s forecasted 2019 revenue requirement for the PCIA is 84.1% higher than 
its approved 2018 revenue requirement, whereas the CTC and CAM revenue requirements 
decreased by 3.3% and 7.5%, respectively. The proposed 2019 average generation rates for 
bundled residential customers is $0.09180/kWh. The proposed 2019 PCIA rates for 2018 and 
2019 vintaged residential customers is $0.03282/kWh. 

• Analysis: This proceeding will implement the October Track 2 Decision from the PCIA docket 
and establish the amount of the PCIA for VCE’s 2019 rates and the level of PG&E’s generation 
rates for bundled customers.  

• Next Steps: A proposed decision (PD) is expected to be issued soon. Comments on the PD will 
be due within 10 days of the PD, with reply comments due five days thereafter.  The PD will not 
be issue in time for the Commission’s December 13, 2018 meeting, its last meeting of the year.  
The next meeting is January 10, 2019. 

• Additional Information: PG&E November Update with proposed PCIA rates on page 60 
(November 9, 2018); Joint NorCal CCA Motion (October 24, 2018); Scoping Memo and Ruling 
(August 16, 2018); CCA Parties’ Protest (July 5, 2018); PG&E’s Application (June 1, 2018); 
PG&E’s Testimony (June 1, 2018); Docket No. A.18-06-001.  

 

Resource Adequacy (RA)  

On November 21, 2018, the judges issued a Proposed Decision (PD) on Track 2 RA issues. 

• Background: This proceeding has three tracks, and is currently focused on Track 2. Track 1 
addressed 2019 local and flexible RA capacity obligations and several near-term refinements to 
the RA program and is closed. The proceeding is currently in Track 2, which is considering issues 
like the adoption of multi-year local RA requirements, a “Central Buyer” proposal for potential 
major revisions to RA procurement, refinements to local RA rules, seasonal local capacity 
requirements, local RA penalty waiver requirements, and increased transparency regarding which 
resources are essential for local and sub-area reliability. A future Track 3 will address issues 
including 2020 RA requirements, potential revisions to RA counting rules for weather-sensitive 
and local demand response resources, and other issues that arise. 

• Details: The PD designates distribution utilities as the central procurement entity for Local RA for 
their respective distribution service areas and adopts requirements for implementing a multi-year 
Local RA procurement process beginning for the 2020 compliance year. (Load-serving entities 
(LSEs) like VCE would continue to procure RA to meet their System and Flexible requirements.) 
The PD also adopts a full procurement model in which the central buyers procure for local 
resources within their service areas rather than a residual procurement model that would have 
allowed LSEs to procure local resources based on their preferences. 

A competitive solicitation process will be conducted by the central buyers for three-year local RA 
procurement, with bids selected based on a least-cost, best-fit methodology. The PD rejects 
PG&E and SDG&E’s proposals to expand the Cost Allocation Mechanism (CAM) to include 
certain utility-owned resources, instead requiring the investor-owned utilities to bid their own 
resources into the solicitation process at their levelized fixed costs. The PD adopts the CAM cost 
recovery mechanism for procurement and administrative costs incurred by the central buyers. 

Finally, the PD directs Energy Division to post a summary list of the resources listed on each 
LSE’s monthly RA plans for the previous year, including the scheduling resource ID, scheduling 
coordinator ID or counterparty, zonal location, and local area. 

• Analysis: If adopted by the CPUC, the PD would affect VCE’s RA compliance obligations 
beginning in 2020 and result in a new RA procurement framework in California that would impact 
VCE’s ability to procure Local RA capacity on its own behalf. Costs would be recovered by the 

32

https://pgera.azurewebsites.net/Regulation/ValidateDocAccess?docID=542399
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M236/K009/236009470.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M222/K198/222198395.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M218/K032/218032094.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M215/K366/215366661.PDF
https://pgera.azurewebsites.net/Regulation/ValidateDocAccess?docID=481958
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:A1806001


 

  

4 

 

IOUs through the CAM charge. The PD would also result in increased transparency about which 
resources each LSE has used to meet its RA obligations in the previous year.  

• Next Steps: Comments are due December 11 and reply comments are due December 16. The 
PD may be heard, at the earliest, at the CPUC’s January 10, 2019 Business Meeting. The 
proceeding will remain open thereafter for Track 3, at which time RA issues not addressed or only 
partially addressed in the decision may be considered. 

• Additional Information: Track 2 Proposed Decision (November 2018); 2017 Resource 
Adequacy Report (August 3, 2018); D.18-06-030 setting local capacity requirements and 
resource adequacy program revisions and D.18-06-031 adopting flexible capacity requirements 
for 2019 (both on June 22, 2018); Scoping Memo and Ruling (January 1, 2018; modified in part 
on May 2, 2018); Docket No. R.17-09-020.  

 

CCA Reentry Fees & Financial Security Requirements 

On November 13, 2018, PG&E filed Advice Letter (5423-E), updating its calculation of the financial 
security requirements for CCAs. (Each CCA’s specific financial security requirement is confidential.) 

• Background: Reentry fees include utility administrative costs and procurement costs resulting 
from a mass involuntary return of CCA customers to utility service. The FSR is used to cover 
those potential costs. The reentry fee for incremental procurement costs is based on six months 
of incremental procurement. The CPUC’s Decision adopted on June 7, 2018 provided that the 
administrative per-customer reentry fee is $4.24 for PG&E (compared to $1.12 for SDG&E and 
$0.50 for SCE) and that the minimum FSR is $147,000, which can be satisfied by letters of credit, 
surety bonds, or cash held by a third party. Utilities are required to update the applicable financial 
security requirements via a Tier 2 AL in May and November each year. 

• Details: PG&E previously submitted three ALs implementing the CPUC’s decision on CCA 
financial security requirements (FSR), including one establishing VCE’s FSR, which was 
subsequently updated via a fourth AL: 

o AL 5423-E (Tier 2, pending) provides an update on specific CCA financial security 
requirements that were previously provided in AL 5350-E (see below). 

o AL 5354-E-A (Tier 2, pending) proposes revisions to electric Rule 23 Community Choice 
Aggregator Service to incorporate the reentry fees and FSRs.  

o AL 5350-E (Tier 2, effective September 13, 2018), specifies VCE’s and other CCAs’ 
FSRs, which are redacted in the Public version. Going forward, PG&E will update the 
FSR amounts biannually (on May 10 and November 10 each year).  

o AL 5359-E (Tier 1, effective pending final disposition) provides a detailed description of 
the specific services that are covered under the CCA customer reentry fee for utility 
administrative costs and how those costs were calculated. It states that PG&E intends to 
identify the administrative fee as a separate item in its 2020 General Rate Case Phase II 
testimony and include a description of the components of the fee, how it is calculated, 
and a comparison of its fee with other major California utilities. 

• Analysis: This rulemaking proceeding is closed. PG&E’s ALs are related to implementing various 
requirements established in the final decision issued in this proceeding. CCAs including VCE are 
required to file an AL noting their FSR has been updated. 

• Next Steps: Protests were due on December 3, 2018. CCAs will be required to submit a 
compliance Tier 1 AL to the Energy Division within 30 days of approval of the ALs, providing 
notice of compliance with the FSR and requesting return of any interim financial security posted 
with the CPUC. 

• Additional Information: AL 5423-E providing updated CCA FSRs (November 13, 2018); AL 
5354-E-A revising electric Rule 23 (October 2, 2018);  AL 5359-E describing reentry fee (August 

33

http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/SearchRes.aspx?DocFormat=ALL&DocID=243570563
http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=6442458520
http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=6442458520
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M216/K634/216634123.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M217/K015/217015083.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M205/K706/205706239.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M213/K824/213824265.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:R1709020
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5423-E.pdf
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5354-E-A.pdf
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5350-E.pdf
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5359.pdf
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5423-E.pdf
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5354-E-A.pdf
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5354-E-A.pdf
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5359.pdf


 

  

5 

 

17, 2018); AL 5350-E on financial security requirements (August 6, 2018); D.18-05-022 
establishing CCA retry fees and financial security requirements (June 7, 2018); Docket No. R.03-
10-003. 
 
 

Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) Rulemaking 

On November 2, 2018, PG&E issued Advice Letter (AL) 5422-E seeking approval of 10 RPS-related 
transactions. On November 8, 2018, the CPUC issued a Decision implementing AB 1923 regarding 
interconnection rules under the Bioenergy feed-in tariff program. On November 9, 2018, the judge issued 
a Scoping Ruling. 

• Background: On July 12, 2018, the CPUC adopted an Order Instituting Rulemaking (OIR) 
establishing a new proceeding addressing RPS-related issues, R.18-07-003. LSEs originally filed 
their RPS Procurement Plans on August 20, 2018. Comments were filed on September 21, 2018 
and reply comments were filed on October 5, 2018. In R.15-02-020, ALJ Mason requested 
updates to the RPS Procurement Plans to address procurement of resources in compliance with 
SB 100, which increased California's RPS target to 60% by 2030 and accelerated interim 
compliance period targets. These updated plans, including VCE’s, were filed on October 8, 2018. 
No parties filed comments on the October 8 (post-SB 100) RPS procurement plans. 

• Details: In AL 5422-E, PG&E requests CPUC approval of 10 RPS transactions, comprised of one 
transaction resulting from PG&E’s bilateral negotiations with San Jose Clean Energy and nine 
transactions resulting from PG&E’s September 2018 RPS Bundled Energy Sale Solicitation. 
These short-term transactions are for the sale of bundled energy and associated Renewable 
Energy Credits generated in 2019-2020 and provided from a number of operating solar PV, solar 
thermal, wind, biomass and geothermal facilities located within California. 

The scoping memo and ruling sets forth the category, issues to be addressed, and schedule of 
the proceeding. The issues to be addressed are threefold: (1) implementing existing and new 
statutory requirements that are mandated or may be mandated during the course of this 
proceeding; (2) continuing and completing specific tasks identified in R.15-02-020 (the now-
closed previous RPS docket), but not completed prior to the issuance of this new Order Instituting 
Rulemaking (OIR); and (3) continuing, monitoring, reviewing, and improving elements of the RPS 
program that have previously been put in place, including identifying additional program elements 
that could be developed. 

The CPUC’s Decision implements changes to interconnection rules for California’s Bioenergy 
Market Adjusting Tariff (BioMAT) program in accordance with Assembly Bill 1923. 

• Analysis: This proceeding will affect VCE’s RPS compliance obligations in 2019 and thereafter. 
This proceeding will also impact PG&E’s RPS compliance obligations and impacts on above-
market costs for the PCIA calculation. Potential issues to be addressed that could impact VCE 
include, but are not limited to, implementing SB 100 (i.e., increasing the RPS to 60% by 2030 and 
100% clean energy by 2045), reviewing and revising RPS penalty rules and confidentiality rules, 
and potentially increasing the RPS procurement percentage for later compliance periods. 

• Next Steps: Protests of AL 5422-E were due November 22, 2018, and the AL is effective pending 
final disposition. A Proposed Decision on 2018 RPS Procurement Plans is expected to be issued 
in December. A Ruling on 2019 RPS Procurement Plans is expected in Q2 2019. A Proposed 
Decision on ELCC, time of delivery factors, and project viability is expected sometime in 2019. 

• Additional Information: Scoping Ruling (November 9, 2018); D.18-11-004 on interconnection 
rules in the BioMAT program per AB 1923 (November 8, 2018); AL-5422 on PG&E RPS 
transactions (November 2, 2018); Ruling on revised RPS Procurement Plans (September 19, 
2018); Order Instituting Rulemaking (July 23, 2018); R-18-07-003. 

 

34

https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5350-E.pdf
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M215/K726/215726275.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:R0310003
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:R0310003
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M237/K661/237661362.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M240/K052/240052096.PDF
https://www.pge.com/tariffs/assets/pdf/adviceletter/ELEC_5422-E.pdf
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M228/K330/228330228.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M218/K214/218214739.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:R1807003


 

  

6 

 

Integrated Resource Planning (IRP) 

In November, three Rulings were issued in this proceeding: (1) a November 29, 2018 Ruling seeking 
comments on inputs and assumptions for development of the 2019-2020 Reference System Plan; (2) a 
November 16, 2018 Ruling seeking comment on policy issues and options related to reliability and 
overlap with the Resource Adequacy docket; and (3) a November 15, 2018 Ruling finalizing production 
cost modeling approach and schedule for preferred system plan development. 

• Background: In February 2018, the CPUC established the 2017-2018 IRP filing requirements 
and statewide reference system plan. VCE submitted its IRP on August 1, 2018. Its next IRP filing 
is due May 1, 2020. 

Details: The November 29, 2018 Ruling requests comments on the modeling inputs and 
assumptions to be used in the development of the Reference System Plan (RSP) for the 2019-
2020 cycle of the Integrated Resource Planning (IRP) process, and contains two attachments 
with the proposed inputs and assumptions.  

The November 16, 2018 Ruling requests comments about how to address emerging electricity 
market issues in the near-to-medium term that may affect overall electric system reliability. This 
Ruling addresses overlapping issues in the Resource Adequacy proceeding.  

The November 15, 2018 Ruling finalizes the production cost modeling approach that CPUC Staff 
will use to analyze electricity resource portfolios, leading to a recommendation for a preferred 
system plan (PSP) for the first cycle of the IRP process. The Ruling also specifies the timeline for 
the modeling and analysis, leading to the PSP, as well as opportunities for comments and input. 

• Analysis:  The proceeding is now focused on addressing issues that will be relevant to VCE’s 
2020 IRP filing. The November 16, 2018 Ruling is likely to address issues relating to the growth 
of CCAs and related reliability issues. Based on LSE IRP submissions, the CPUC will now be 
aggregating data to inform development of the recommended Preferred System Plan described in 
Decision (D.) 18-02-018. 

• Next Steps: Comments on the 2019-2020 Reference System Plan inputs (in response to the 
November 29, 2018 Ruling) are due December 12, 2018, with reply comments due December 19, 
2018. Comments on reliability issues (in response to the November 16, 2018 Ruling) are due 
December 20, 2018, with reply comments due January 14, 2019. Finally, parties conducting 
modeling are directed to informally submit results to Staff by January 3, 2019, with a workshop on 
production cost modeling scheduled for January 7, 2019, a Ruling seeking comments issued on 
January 11, 2019, comments in response to the Ruling due January 31, 2019, reply comments 
due February 11, 2019, and a proposed decision issued in March 2019.  

• Additional Information: Ruling seeking comments on 2019-2020 Reference System Plan 
(November 29, 2018); Ruling seeking comments on reliability issues (November 16, 2018); 
Ruling finalizing production cost modeling approach and schedule (November 15, 2018); Staff 
Proposal for incorporating energy efficiency into the IRP process (September 18, 2018); VCE’s 
2018 IRP (August 1, 2018); Ruling adopting final load forecasts and GHG reduction benchmarks 
(June 18, 2018); Ruling adopting GHG accounting method and benchmarks (May 25, 2018); 
D.18-02-018 adopting IRP reference plan and load-serving entity requirements (February 13, 
2018); Docket No. R.16-02-007.  

 

Tree Mortality Nonbypassable Charge (NBC) 

On November 8, 2018, the CPUC issued a Proposed Decision (PD) establishing a methodology for 
calculating a non-bypassable charge that will collect revenue to pay for certain biomass energy 
procurement by utilities including PG&E. 

• Background: On November 14, 2016, PG&E, SCE, and SDG&E filed an application seeking a 
"Tree Mortality Non-Bypassable Charge," and proposed cost recovery through the Public 
Purpose Program Charge. The utilities asserted that SB 859 (2016) required these costs be 

35

http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M243/K617/243617668.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M238/K286/238286497.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K155/241155600.PDF
https://pda.energydataweb.com/#!/documents/2083/view
https://pda.energydataweb.com/#!/documents/2083/view
https://valleycleanenergy.org/wp-content/uploads/VCEA-2018-IRP.pdf
https://valleycleanenergy.org/wp-content/uploads/VCEA-2018-IRP.pdf
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M216/K500/216500593.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M214/K861/214861583.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M209/K771/209771632.PDF
http://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:R1602007


 

  

7 

 

allocated to all customers, including unbundled customers. The utilities defined the costs to be 
allocated as net costs factoring in all contract costs net of energy, ancillary service, and 
renewable energy credit values. 

• Details: The PD establishes that the non-bypassable charge will recover the net costs to the 
utilities of the tree mortality-related biomass energy procurement, i.e., excluding revenue received 
by the utilities through sales of energy and ancillary services and the value of Renewable Energy 
Certificates related to the procurement. The non-bypassable charge will be collected through 
each utility’s Public Purpose Program Charge. 

• Analysis: If adopted, the PD will result in additional costs being recovered through the Public 
Purpose Program Charge from CCA and bundled customers. 

• Next Steps: Comments on the PD were due November 28, 2018, and reply comments were due 
December 3, 2018. The PD may be heard, at the earliest, at the CPUC’s December 13, 2018, 
Business Meeting. 

• Additional Information: Proposed Decision (November 8, 2018); Scoping Memo and Ruling 
establishing the scope and procedural schedule (May 30, 2018); Ruling denying CalCCA’s Motion 
to include consolidated cost recovery in the scope of this proceeding (March 14, 2018); Docket 
No. A.16-11-005.  

 

PG&E Rate Design Window (RDW) 

On November 7, 2018, the judges filed a Proposed Decision (PD) in Phase IIA of the proceeding, 
primarily addressing SDG&E’s residential default time-of-use rate design proposal and transition 
implementation.  

• Background: The IOUs’ RDW applications have been consolidated into one proceeding. This 
proceeding is divided into three phases, with the second phase further bifurcated. A May 2018 
Phase I Decision granted PG&E approval to begin transitioning eligible residential customers to 
TOU rates beginning in October 2020.  

The proceeding is now focused on Phase II, which is considering the IOUs’ specific rate design 
proposals for default TOU and other rate options, as well as implementation issues for default 
TOU. With respect to PG&E, Phase IIA is focused on PG&E’s proposal to restructure the CARE 
discounts into a single line item percentage discount to the customer’s total bill, and Phase IIB is 
addressing its rate design proposals and implementation, including a number of issues impacting 
CCA customers (e.g., PG&E’s CCA rate comparison tool and TOU rate design roll out to CCA 
customers).  

Phase III will consider the IOUs’ proposals for fixed charges and/or minimum bills. PG&E 
proposed raising its minimum bill from $10/month to $15/month and implementing a fixed charge 
beginning at $3.70/month in the first year and rising to $7.40/month in the second year. 

• Details: The PD resolves Phase IIA issues. It primarily addresses SDG&E's proposed default 
TOU rate and plan to transition customers. However, the PD also adopts proposals from PG&E 
and SCE to transition their discounted programs (CARE for PG&E and CARE and Family Electric 
Rate Assistance for SCE) to provide a percentage-based bill discount in place of the current 
practice of establishing separate tariffs with discounted rates for these customers. PG&E’s and 
SCE’s additional rate design proposals and implementation issues related to their transitions to 
default TOU rates, which are set to begin in October 2020, will be considered in a subsequent 
phase of this proceeding. 

The PD adopts SDG&E's proposed default TOU rate – a three-period tiered TOU rate (peak, off-
peak, super off-peak) – and a proposed separate tiered two-period TOU rate (peak, off-peak) as 
an alternative to the default TOU rate. The three-period TOU rate would have a 4-9 p.m. on-peak 
period for all days of the year, a super off-peak period of midnight-2 p.m. on weekends and 
holidays, and a weekday super off-peak period of midnight - 6 a.m. with an added super off-peak 

36

http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M238/K243/238243825.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M215/K367/215367060.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M212/K073/212073605.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:A1611005


 

  

8 

 

period from 10 a.m. - 2 p.m. during March and April. The two-period rate would have a year-round 
on-peak period of 4-9 p.m. for both weekdays and weekends, and an off-peak period covering all 
other hours. It features milder peak and off-peak rate differentials than the three-period rate. 

• Analysis: This proceeding will impact the timing, details, and implementation of residential TOU 
rates for bundled PG&E customers as well as VCE customers via rate design changes to the 
distribution component of customer bills. It could affect the level of VCE’s rates compared to 
PG&E’s, and to the extent VCE mirrors PG&E’s residential rate design, lead to changes in the 
way VCE structures it residential rates.  

• Next Steps: Comments on the Phase IIA PD were due November 27, 2018, replies were due 
December 3, 2018. The PD may be adopted, at the earliest, at the CPUC's December 13, 2018, 
meeting. In Phase IIB, ORA and intervenor testimony were due October 26 and rebuttal 
testimony is due December 7. A Phase IIB Decision is expected in July 2019. There are no 
Phase III procedural deadlines scheduled until March 2019. 

• Additional Information: Phase IIA Proposed Decision (November 7, 2018); Ruling requesting 
supplemental testimony on GHG reduction cost estimates (August 17, 2018); PG&E 
Supplemental Testimony (August 17, 2018); Ruling clarifying scope (July 31, 2018); D.18-05-011 
(Phase I) on the timing of a transition to default TOU rates (May 17, 2018); Amended Scoping 
Memo (April 10, 2018); PG&E Rate Design Window Application & Testimony (December 20, 
2017); Docket No. A.17-12-011 (consolidated).  

 

Other Regulatory Developments 

• PG&E 2019 Rate Design Window (RDW) Application. On November 20, 2018, PG&E filed a 
rate design window (RDW) Application seeking approval of several proposed modifications to 
its rates for agricultural customers (A.18-11-018). PG&E does not propose any rate design 
modifications for any other customer classes. The Application was noticed in the November 21, 
2018, CPUC Daily Calendar, placing the deadline for responses or protests on December 21, 
2018. The filing stems from PG&E's recently completed Phase 2 rate case, where a new set of 
default rates (AG-A, AG-B, and AG-C) and opt-in rates (AG-RA, AG-RB, and AG-RC) were 
adopted to replace the legacy set of agricultural rate schedules. The associated settlement 
required to PG&E to file a 2019 RDW proposal seeking bill mitigation measures for "highly 
impacted" customers, defined as those that would see bill increases over 7% and $100 per year. 
PG&E states that these new rates would replace all of the rates adopted in the 2017 GRC and 
consequently requests a decision on the RDW Application by April 2019 in order to implement the 
rates by March 2020, and avoid customer confusion (i.e., by adopting the 2017 GRC rates only to 
have them replaced soon thereafter). 

• PG&E 2018 Energy Storage Procurement. On November 9, 2018, the CPUC issued Final 
Resolution E-4949 accepting PG&E's June Advice Letter (AL 5322-E) seeking approval of 
contracts for energy storage facilities totaling 567.5 MW resulting from an RFO it issued in 
response to CPUC Resolution E-4909. Resolution E-4949 was adopted in a 4-1 vote with 
Commissioner Rechtschaffen dissenting. Resolution E-4909 stems from the potential designation 
of three Calpine power plants as reliability must run (RMR) resources by the CAISO (allowing full 
cost-based cost recovery rather than market-based pricing). The RFO was intended to fulfill the 
local capacity needs underlying the RMR designations so as to avoid the need for the RMR 
contracts and mitigate concerns that plant retirements coupled with increased local capacity 
needs would create conditions for a future exercise of market power. The Final Resolution rejects 
a series of party protests contesting the cost-effectiveness of the proposed contracts relative to 
other options and the reasonableness of allowing PG&E to recover the associated costs from all 
ratepayers rather than just bundled ratepayers. 

• PG&E Diablo Canyon. On November 19, 2018, the CPUC issued a Revised Proposed Decision 
(PD) implementing SB 1090 (2018) and modifying its January 2018 Decision (D.18-01-022) 
addressing planning for the retirement of the Diablo Canyon nuclear power plant and associated 

37

file:///C:/Users/sheridan/Downloads/Phase%20IIA
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M221/K838/221838688.PDF
https://pgera.azurewebsites.net/Regulation/ValidateDocAccess?docID=528003
https://pgera.azurewebsites.net/Regulation/ValidateDocAccess?docID=528003
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M219/K473/219473905.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M214/K512/214512974.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M212/K893/212893197.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M212/K893/212893197.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:A1712011
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K165/241165670.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:A1811018
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M240/K050/240050937.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M240/K050/240050937.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M242/K923/242923264.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M205/K423/205423920.PDF


 

  

9 

 

funding for employee retention and community impact mitigation programs (A.16-08-006). The 
PD authorizes PG&E to collect an additional $225.8 million in rates over the amounts authorized 
in D.18-01-022 for PG&E's employee retention and community mitigation measures associated 
with the plant closure. The change stems from SB 1090 (2018), which requires the CPUC to fully 
fund the employee retention program as proposed by PG&E in its initial application, and the 
community impact mitigation program (CIMP) included in the initially proposed settlement. D.18-
01-006 did not permit the utility to recover CIMP costs totaling $85 million, and cut the amount of 
cost recovery for the employee retention program by $141 million from PG&E's original request. 
In contrast to the original PD, the revised PD provides that CIMP costs may be recovered through 
the nuclear decommissioning non-bypassable charge rather than base rates. 

• PG&E Commercial Electric Vehicle (EV) Rates. On November 5, 2018, PG&E filed an 
Application proposing to create a new Commercial EV Charging rate class, which would include 
two new rate schedules (A.18-11-003). These EV schedules would feature two components, a 
monthly “subscription charge,” based on the customer’s maximum charging capacity, and a time-
of-use volumetric rate, designed to encourage customers to charge at times of greater grid 
capacity and renewable generation, and lower marginal cost. Specifically, PG&E proposes a new 
rate, E-CEV-S, for small commercial EV (CEV) chargers. It applies to separately-metered EV 
charging sites with a maximum load of 100 kW. PG&E also proposes a new rate, E-CEV-L, for 
Large CEV charging. 

• DER Tariff Proposals. On November 16, 2018, the CPUC issued a Ruling requesting DER tariff 
proposals by February 15, 2019. The DER tariff proposals are intended to provide an alternative 
mechanism to competitive RFOs for utilities to procure DERs to provide grid services. The 
request follows the addition of DER tariffs to the scope of this proceeding in a February 2018 
Amended Scoping Ruling, which was followed by a workshop in August 2018. The Ruling 
contains a report listing responses from workshop attendees to seven questions, which include 
proposed definitions and design principles. A follow-up workshop on party proposals will be 
scheduled at a later date (R.14-10-003).  

38

https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:A1608006
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M238/K227/238227315.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:A1811003
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Efile/G000/M241/K155/241155615.PDF
https://apps.cpuc.ca.gov/apex/f?p=401:56:0::NO:RP,57,RIR:P5_PROCEEDING_SELECT:R1410003


 1 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 
 

Staff Report – Agenda Item 8 

 

TO:   Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors  
 

FROM:  Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager, VCEA 
 

SUBJECT: Customer Enrollment Update (Information)   
 

DATE:   December 13, 2018 
              
 
RECOMMENDATION   
 
Receive and review the attached Customer Enrollment update as of December 7, 2018.     
 
     

39



Enrollment Update

1
Status Date: 12/7/18

Eligible Opt-Out % Opt Out

Residential 56,500    3,582      6.3%

Non-Residential 8,500      715         8.4%

Total 65,000    4,297      6.6%
0

50

100

150

200

6/2/2018 7/2/2018 8/2/2018 9/2/2018 10/2/2018 11/2/2018

Daily Opt Outs

40



VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 

 

Staff Report – Item 9 
 

TO:  Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors 

 
FROM:  Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager 

 
SUBJECT: Transmittal of Community Advisory Committee Report – December 3, 2018 

meeting 

   
DATE:  December 13, 2018 
 

This report transmits the Community Advisory Committee’s Report regarding its December 3, 
2018 meeting. 

 
Attachment 
1. CAC Report 

41



Valley Clean Energy Alliance 
Community Advisory Committee (CAC) Report to the Board 
Summary of December 3rd CAC Meeting 

 

• Resumption of 2019 PCC-2 Renewable Procurements  
➢ G. Lawson provided updates regarding the CEC process to develop new rules regarding 

Power Source Disclosure/Power Content Label (PSD/PCL) requirements.   Decisions 
regarding the new rules will not take place until sometime in 2019.    

➢ Newly formed CCAs can avoid reporting carbon emissions for 24-36 months after launch.   
➢ Motion:  to support Staff’s recommend to Board to resume procurement of PCC-2 for 2019.  

Motion passed:  5-0-0. 
 

• Review of VCE Board Approved Modifications  
➢ M. Sears reviewed the Board decisions made at November 15th meeting regarding 

modifications to rate structure, rate discount, and postponement of NEM enrollment.      
➢ Discussed possibility of CAC  assisting in the evaluation of NEM enrollment options. 

 

• CAC Year 2 Plan and Priorities 
➢ Discussed general thoughts and plans for CAC role and priorities in 2019.  Along with 

responding to Staff requests for input on options Staff is evaluating prior to making 
recommendations to the board, the CAC wants to focus on longer term local resource 
development issues, options and plans.  

➢ Member suggested priorities for coming year: 
i. Alignment of JPA members.  How can VCEA support the three jurisdictions in their 

energy efficiency efforts? 
ii. Balancing efforts on new initiatives with action to address financial constraints. 

iii. Review local resource related IRP items and have small groups of CAC members 
research an item and bring information back to entire CAC with recommendations. 

iv. Focus on public discourse regarding the need and urgency to address climate 
concerns. 

v. What can VCE do to enhance revenues and net income, e.g. additional options? 
vi. Collaboration between VCE and its member communities to engage the public. 

 

• Election of Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary of CAC 
➢ Motion:  to re-elect G. Braun as Chair, C. Shewmaker as Vice Chair and M. Baird as Secretary 

for 2019.  Motion passed:  5-0-0. 
 

• Items brought up for possible further discussion at upcoming CAC meetings 
o Possibility of interacting with the community advisory committees of other CCAs 
o Possibility for CAC to have a visit or video conference, etc. with Beth Vaugh of CalCCA 
o Address task group structure – a yearly review 
o Invite Green Ideals to come talk with the full CAC 

42



 1 

 
VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 

 
Staff Report – Item 10 

 
To:   Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors  
 

From:   Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager 
  Lisa Limcaco, Director of Finance and Operations 
 
Subject: Approval of Amendment 6 to SMUD Services Agreement Task Order 4 Related to 

VCE Organizational Staffing 
 
Date:   December 13, 2018 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION  
1. Adopt a resolution authorizing the Interim General Manager to sign Amendment 6 to SMUD 

Services Agreement Task Order 4 to extend the Task Order to March 1, 2019.  
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS  
On October 12, 2017 the VCE Board approved a Professional Services Agreement with the 
Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) to provide launch and operational services for 
VCE.  A series of Task Orders implemenated the Agreement, including Task Order 4 for 
Operational Staff Services which was approved by the Board in December 2017. 
 
Task Order 4 is scheduled to expire on December 31, 2018.  The recommended action would 
approve an amendment to extend Task Order 4 from December 31, 2018 to March 1, 2019 – all 
other terms and conditions would remain the same.  This short-term extension allows VCE and 
SMUD to analyze PG&E’s 2019 rate changes and factor them in to any modifications to Task 
Order 4 going forward. 
 
The staffing costs associated with the recommended Task Order extension are consistent with 
the adopted VCE budget. 
 
CONCLUSION  
Staff is recommending the VCE Board adopt the attached resolution authorizing the Interim 
General Manager to approve and sign Task Order 4, Amendment 6 in substantially the same 
form as attached. 
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution Approving VCE-SMUD Master Services Agreement Task Order 4, Amendment 6   
2. Professional Services Agreement - Task Order 4, Amendment 6  
 

 

43



1 

 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018- _______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE APPROVING AMENDMENT 6 
TO THE SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES DISTRICT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR OPERATIONAL STAFF SERVICES TASK ORDER 4 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Valley Clean Energy Alliance (“VCEA”) is a joint powers agency established under 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California (Government Code Section 6500 et 
seq.) (“Act”), and pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to and Creating 
the Valley Clean Energy Alliance between the County of Yolo (“County”), the City of Davis 
(“Davis”), and the City of Woodland (“City”) (the “JPA Agreement”), to collectively study, 
promote, develop, conduct, operate, and manage energy programs; and 

WHEREAS, on August 31, 2017, the VCEA Board considered a proposal by the Sacramento 
Municipal Utilities District (“SMUD”) to provide program launch and operational services and 
subsequently directed VCEA staff to negotiate a services agreement between VCEA and SMUD 
for consideration and action by the VCEA Board;  

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2017, the SMUD Board of Directors authorized its CEO to enter 
into a contract with VCEA to provide CCA support services;     

WHEREAS, On October 12, 2017 the VCEA Board approved the Master Professional Services 
Agreement and Task Order 1 and Task Order 2 to provide program launch and operational 
services consistent with the SMUD proposal and VCEA Board direction;  

WHEREAS, On November 16, 2017 the VCEA Board approved Task Order 3 to provide 
Wholesale Energy Services consistent with the SMUD proposal and VCEA Board direction;  

WHEREAS, on December 12, 2017, the VCEA Board approved Task Order 4 to provide 
Operational Staff Services to VCEA for program launch and operations;    

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2018, the VCEA Board approved Task Order 5 to provide long term 
renewable procurement services;    

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2018, the VCEA Board approved via Resolution 2018-028, 
Amendment 5 to Task Order 4, which amended Section 1.2 Scope of Services, and Section 4.1.1 
Dedicated Operational Staff; 

WHEREAS, Task Order 4, expires on December 31, 2019 and VCEA and SMUD mutually agree to 
extend the Task Order to March 1, 2019. 

44



2 

 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Valley Clean Energy Alliance resolves as 
follows: 

1. The VCEA Interim General Manager is authorized to sign Amendment 6 to SMUD 
Services Agreement Task Order 4 to extend the Task Order to March 1, 2019. 

 

 
 

ADOPTED, this ____ day of  ______________, 2018, by the following vote:  
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Lucas Frerichs, VCEA Chair 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Alisa M. Lembke, VCEA Board Secretary 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A -  Amendment 6 to Master Professional Services Agreement Task Order 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

45



3 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AMENDMENT 6 TO TASK ORDER 4 - OPERATIONAL STAFF SERVICES 

 
 

46



1 AMENDMENT 6 TO EXHIBIT A TASK ORDER 4 12 4 18 
 

AMENDMENT 6 TO EXHIBIT A: Scope of Services 
 
A.4 Task Order 4 – Operational Staff Services 

 
SMUD and VCEA agree to the following services, terms, and conditions described in this 
Amendment 6 to Exhibit A, Task Order No. 4 (Amendment 6), the provisions of which are subject 
to the terms and conditions of the Master Professional Services Agreement (Agreement) 
between the Parties. If any specific provisions of this Amendment 6 conflict with any general 
provisions in the Agreement or Task Order 4, the provisions of this Amendment 6, shall take 
precedence.   
 
The Effective Date of this Amendment 6 is the date of last signature below. 

 
The Parties hereto mutually agree to the following changes to Task Order No. 4: 

 
 

A. Amend Section 4, Term and Termination.  Sub-section 4.1.1, Dedicated Operational 
Staff, Paragraph 1 is replaced in its entirety with the following: 

 
“Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Term of Task Order 4, SMUD will assign dedicated operational 
staff as described in Section 1.1 of this Task Order 4 for Finance and Operations and Customer 
Care and Communications to be available onsite at VCEA offices.  SMUD will provide the 
dedicated operational staff through February 28, 2019.  The Parties may mutually agree to 
extend or modify any portion of the operational staff services as provided in Section 4.2.1 of 
Task Order No. 4.” 

 

SIGNATURES 
 

The Parties have executed this Amendment 6, and it is effective as of the date of last signature 

below. 

Valley Clean Energy Alliance 

 
By:     

Name:    

Title:    
 

Date:     

 

Approved as 
to Form:    

47



2 AMENDMENT 6 TO EXHIBIT A TASK ORDER 4 12 4 18 
 

 
 

Sacramento Municipal Utility District 

 
By:     

Name:    

Title:    

 

Date:    

 

Approved as 
to Form:    

48



 1 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 
 

Staff Report – Agenda Item 11 

 

TO:   Valley Clean Energy Alliance (VCE) Board of Directors  
 

FROM:  Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager 
Alisa Lembke, VCE Board Clerk/Administrative Analyst 

 

SUBJECT: Consideration of Appointment of Woodland Resident to Vacant Seat on the Community 
Advisory Committee  

 

DATE:   December 13, 2018 
              
 
Recommendation   
Appoint Christine Casey to the City of Woodland vacancy on the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 
for a three (3) year term (expiring 2021). 
 
Background   
The VCE Board of Directors on December 13, 2016 via Resolution #2016-006 formed a Community 
Advisory Committee (CAC).   

On September 13, 2018, the Board approved the terms of service and officer position of members who 
serve on the Community Advisory Committee.  The Board was informed that two vacancies, City of 
Woodland and Yolo County, were available on the CAC.   

On October 18, 2018, the Board approved a three-year term for Community Advisory Committee 
members, how to determine the terms of service of current CAC members, and criteria for new member 
recruitment, solicitation and selection;  

Staff informed the Board at their November 15, 2018 meeting that the solicitation for volunteers to fill 
the two vacancies was issued in late October using VCE’s list of e-mails and on the VCE website and 
Staff had requested that the City of Woodland and Yolo County advertise the solicitation.   
 
In addition, the Board adopted Resolution 2018-030 which summarized VCE’s solicitation and 
appointment process to the CAC.  This process included an initial staff review for completeness 
followed by review by the Board subcommittee and recommendation to the full Board.  The VCE Board 
would then appoint volunteers to terms of service on the CAC.   
 
As of December 7, 2018, one application has been received.  Ms. Christine Casey, resident of the City of 
Woodland, submitted her application for appointment to the CAC.  Staff forwarded it to the Board 
subcommittee for review and is being presented to the Board for recommendation of appointment.     
 

49



 2 

Ms. Casey’s background and her interest in serving on the CAC is summarized below.   
 
Experience:   

• City of Woodland Water Utility Advisory Committee Chair 

• City of Woodland Climate Action Plan Advisory Committee Member 

• City of Woodland General Plan Steering Committee Member 

• City of Woodland Historical Preservation Commission Member and Chair  
 
 
Interest in serving on the CAC:   
In her application she states that she supports VCE’s mission of providing energy choices to consumers 
and would like to bring her experience as a scientist and working with the community on utility issues 
to improve VCE’s public outreach efforts.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



 

1 
 
 

 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 

 
Staff Report – Agenda Item 12 

 

 
 

TO:  Valley Clean Energy Alliance Board of Directors 

 
FROM:  Mitch Sears, Interim General Manager 
  Gary Lawson, Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD) 

 
SUBJECT: Resumption of 2019 PCC-2 Renewable Procurements  

   
DATE:  December 13, 2018 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve a resolution authorizing staff to resume the procurement of PCC-2 Renewable Power 
for VCE’s projected 2019 needs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On June 6, 2018, the Board adopted a resolution on staff’s recommendation to suspend PCC-2 
power procurements until the California Energy Commission (CEC) adopts new rules related to 
revisions in the Power Source Disclosure/Power Content Label (PSD/PCL) requirements for 
California Load Serving Entities (LSEs).  These new rules result from changes to the PSD/PCL law 
affected by AB 1110 passed in 2016.  The changes are to apply starting with 2019 power 
deliveries.  (The resulting reporting would be published in 2020 on the specified reporting 
schedule for 2019 deliveries.)   AB 1110 changes include the addition of greenhouse gas 
emissions intensity reporting in the mandatory Power Content Labeling.   
 
At the time of the Board’s June action, CEC staff had developed a draft proposal that  
that would not be favorable regarding the greenhouse gas reporting associated with PCC-2 
renewable power imports.  As the Board will recall, PCC-2 renewable power is imported from 
outside California from a seller supplying renewable energy certificates (RECs) from a 
renewable resource along with a power import into California from a different, non-renewable 
resource.  Currently, the ownership of PCC-2 RECs is evidence that the purchaser has bought 
the renewable carbon free attributes of the supplying renewable energy resource.  For 
example, the RECs might be matched with an import of power from a natural gas-fired power 
plant.  The PCC-2 REC offsets any carbon emissions associated with the underlying imported 
energy.  The draft CEC staff proposal would require the LSE to declare the carbon emissions 
associated with the underlying energy and would not allow the PCC-2 REC to offset the carbon 
emissions for greenhouse gas reporting purposes.   
 
On October 9, 2018, CEC staff issued AB 1110 Implementation Proposal for Power Source 
Disclosure, Third Version which maintains their previous proposal regarding needing to declare 
the GHG emissions intensity associated with the power import underlying the PCC-2 RECs. 

51



 

2 
 
 

 

 
At this point, development of the amendments to the PSD/PCL regulations is in the pre-
rulemaking phase.   CEC staff plan to conduct another pre-rulemaking workshop later this year 
to present draft regulatory language based on the AB 1110 Implementation Proposal for Power 
Source Disclosure, Third Version.  VCE staff had anticipated that the CEC would have issued the 
rulemaking on the AB1110 changes by now.  As it stands, the rulemaking won’t be issued until 
sometime in 2019.   
 
VCE still needs to procure the additional PCC-2 renewable power necessary to supply its 
targeted 42% renewable power content for 2019. 
 
Note:  procurement of PCC-2 resources is consistent with Board approved procurement 
strategy for the early years of VCE while longer-term PCC-1 renewable contracts are secured by 
VCE.  VCE’s solicitation process for these longer-term renewable contracts is currently 
underway.  These resources are considered PPC-1, currently cheaper than PCC-2 resources, and 
are anticipated to begin coming on-line in late 2020/early 2021.  Therefore, any PCC-2 contracts 
will be short-term and phased out as soon as possible. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
While the changes in law require all LSEs to begin reporting greenhouse gas emissions intensity 
in 2020 for power deliveries during the 2019 calendar year, that legislation also allows a newly 
formed CCA to avoid reporting carbon emissions for 24 months up to 36 months after launch, 
meaning that VCEA would not have to report carbon emissions for 2019, and possibly not for 
2020: 

 
“Any new community choice aggregator formed after January 1, 2016, shall not be 
required to report data on greenhouse gas emissions intensity associated with retail 
sales until at least 24 months, but shall be required to report that data no later than 36 
months, after serving its first retail customer” (PUC § 398.4 (k)2.F(ii).   

 
Therefore, VCEA will have a choice on whether it reports greenhouse gas emissions in 2020 for 
2019 power deliveries, and possibly in 2021 for 2020 power deliveries. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Table 1 in Attachment 1 shows the estimated carbon emissions for VCEA’s 2019 power 
portfolio under the current assumptions that PCC-2 RECs would offset the carbon emissions 
associated with the matched imported power.  The estimated carbon emissions intensity is 281 
lb/MWh. 
 
In the event that the CEC were to adopt CEC staff’s position, the consequence to VCEA would 
be that without any action, VCEA’s reported carbon emissions increase significantly.  Table 2 in 
the Attachment 1 shows that VCEA’s estimated carbon emissions intensity could go to 421 
lb/MWh based upon the reporting change and assuming VCEA took no other action to try and 

52



 

3 
 
 

 

reduce reported carbon emissions.  In the event that VCEA wanted to reduce its carbon 
emissions intensity to compensate for the GHG emissions intensity increase, VCEA would incur 
increased costs to procure additional no/low carbon energy to offset the increase in carbon 
emissions that would be attributed to PCC-2 renewable power.   Under today’s power costs, 
VCE could pay up to $800,000 for the additional no/low carbon energy needed in 2019. 
 
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REVIEW 
 
Staff reviewed the recommendation with the Community Advisory Committee on December 3, 
2018, which voted on and approved supporting staff’s recommendation. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Because the CEC has not yet acted and will not be enacting the PSD/PCL rule changes until 
sometime in 2019, and because it will be important for VCE to have locked in its PCC-2 
procurement prior to January 1, 2019, staff proposes that the Board provide direction to 
resume 2019 PCC-2 procurement. 
 
Staff makes the proposed specific recommendations in the aforementioned resolution. 
 
Attachment 
1. VCE Carbon Intensity Calculations – 2019 
2. Resolution 
 

53



 

4 
 
 

 

Attachment 1 
 

 
 

  

54



 

5 
 
 

 

 

55



1 

 

VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY ALLIANCE BOARD AUTHORIZING STAFF 
TO RESUME THE PROCUREMENT OF PCC-2 RENEWABLE POWER FOR VALLEY CLEAN 

ENERGY ALLIANCE’S PROJECTED 2019 NEEDS 
 

WHEREAS, the Valley Clean Energy Alliance (“VCEA”) is a joint powers agency established under 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California (Government Code Section 6500 et 
seq.) (“Act”), and pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to and Creating 
the Valley Clean Energy Alliance between the County of Yolo (“County”), the City of Davis 
(“Davis”), and the City of Woodland (“City”) (the “JPA Agreement”), to collectively study, 
promote, develop, conduct, operate, and manage energy programs; and 

WHEREAS, to serve its customers, VCEA has procured PCC-2 renewable power to partially meet 
its renewable energy and clean power goals;  

WHEREAS, the California Energy Commission (CEC) is currently considering changes to the 
Power Source Disclosure/Power Content Label (PSD/PCL) requirements for California load 
serving entities resulting from changes to the PSD/PCL law affected by AB 1110;     

WHEREAS, the CEC’s pending action creates uncertainty as to the future applicability of PCC-2 
for off-setting carbon emissions;  

WHEREAS, the CEC’s final decision on PCC-2 renewable power was anticipated later in 2018;   

WHEREAS, on June 6, 2018 the Board adopted Resolution 2018-018, which:  

1.  suspended the current forward procurement of PCC-2 Renewable Power pending 
outcome of the California Energy Commission’s (CEC) effort to update the Power Source 
Disclosure/Power Content Labeling requirements for load serving entities.   
 

2.  required staff to return to the Board for direction on the procurement of PCC-2 
Renewable Power after the CEC has defined Power Source Disclosure/Power Content 
Labeling requirements of the treatment of PCC-2 Renewable Power by load serving 
entities.   
 

WHEREAS, VCE staff had anticipated that the CEC would have issued the rulemaking on the 
AB1110 changes by now;   
 
WHEREAS, VCE Staff anticipates that the rulemaking will be issued sometime in 2019;   
 
 

56



2 

 

WHEREAS, VCE needs to procure the additional PCC-2 renewable power necessary to supply its 
targeted 42% renewable power content for 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, procurement of PCC-2 resources is consistent with Board approved procurement 
strategy for the early years of VCE while longer-term PCC-1 renewable contracts are secured by 
VCE.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the VCEA Board of Directors authorizes staff to resume the procurement of 
PCC-2 Renewable Power for VCE’s projected 2019 needs 

 

 
 

 

ADOPTED, this ____ day of _______________, 2018, by the following vote:  
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Lucas Frerichs, Chair 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Alisa M. Lembke, Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 

57


	Actual vs Budget

